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Stoddard, WI    Early 1900’s Special thanks to the Vernon County Historical Society for early Stoddard pictures. 



     One hundred and fifty years later a lot has 
changed at St. Matthew’s. The population of our 
nation is now 327,000,000 in 50 states. The Mis-
sissippi River is no longer a major frontier, but 
outer space is. Horses and buggies have been 
replaced by airplanes and cars - even electric 
ones. Electricity, internet and cell phone tech-
nology have completely changed the way we live 
our lives. Much has changed but some things 
have not and will never change. Everyone who 
lives here is a sinner in need of a relationship 
with our heavenly Father. Because we all still 
sin, it doesn’t matter how fine of medical center 
we have in this country, people will get sick, 
grow old and die. The Holy Spirit still works 
through Baptism, the Word of God, and the 
Lord’s Supper to bring people to faith in Jesus as 
our Savior, and strengthen that faith within us. 
God’s Word is still the only source of forgiveness 
for our sins and eternal salvation. And this con-
gregation, so humbly incorporated 150 years 
ago, continues to preach that life-giving Word. 
With God’s gracious blessing, the Holy Spirit’s 
power and the support of God’s people, may 
this church continue to proclaim the gospel to 
ourselves, to our community and to the next 
generation until our Lord comes again. 

                 Our nation was not yet 
100 years old. General 
Ulysses S. Grant was 
president of our 37 
United States. Wiscon-
sin was only 22 years 
old.  The Civil War 
had ended only five 
years earlier. One 
hundred and fifty 
years ago, in 1870, 
the population of 
our nation was 

38,500,000. That year, 
the National Weather Service 

made its first official meteorological forecast. 
That same year, the 15th Amendment gave black 
Americans the right to vote, the Standard Oil Compa-
ny was incorporated by John D. Rockefeller, and in a 
small town in Wisconsin on the banks of the Missis-
sippi River, a small group of Christians was gathering 
to establish a congregation so they could worship 
together. These pioneers wanted to be sure that 
they and their children could regularly hear the 
Word of God and receive the Sacraments. 

     You might think that in a part of the world where 
help was scarce, doctors were few and far between, 
roads were often not much more than wagon trails, 
and winters were long and harsh that these people 
would have had more important things to do than 
start up a congregation  and build a house of wor-
ship. But they didn’t think so. You might think that 
they would have had more important things to 
spend their time and hard earned money on than a 
church building and paying a pastor to come from La 
Crosse to preach and administer the Lord’s Supper to 
them. But that’s not how they felt. The Word of God 
was of utmost importance to them.  

St. Matthew’s Evangelical Lutheran Church 

Early Beginnings 



     The founders of St. Matthew’s Ev. Lutheran Church came 

from the country of Germany. These immigrants heard about 

Wisconsin, a land of opportunity. It offered beautiful thick for-

est, fertile soil, clear springs and streams, and an abundance of 

fish and game. Above all these physical opportunities that this 

land had to offer, Wisconsin had the freedom of worship. 

     Inspired by letters sent to them from friends and relatives 

already here, the families packed their personal belongings and 

sailed to America and on to the port of Milwaukee. From there 

they moved across the vast wilderness to the Mississippi River, 

a frontier barrier.  

      

     

     These early pioneers found and settled in this area south of 

La Crosse in the 1860’s. The Town of Bergen had been orga-

nized in or about 1853, five years after Wisconsin was admitted 

to the Union and twelve years after the first log cabins were 

built by Nathan Myrick in La Crosse. After their farms were 

established, they met at the homes of neighbors to discuss the 

establishment of a congregation and a house of worship. A site 

was picked on a knoll overlooking this picturesque valley east 

of what is now Stoddard. Land was donated by William 

Wehling for the purpose of building a house of worship and 

plotting a cemetery. 

The Town of Bergen in 1870 

From the 1870 Census 

 
                    795 People 

 

283 born in Wisconsin 

106 born in Norway 

152 Born in Prussia 

Remainder came from other parts of 
Germany, Western Europe and the  
United States, mostly from the north-
east 

147 families 

409 males 

386 females 

Occupations 
Farmers - 109 

Farm laborers - 43 

Teachers - 3 

Shoemakers - 2 

Domestic servant - 1 

Retired merchant - 1 

Blacksmith - 1 

Showman -1 

Retail merchant-1 

Carpenter - 1 

Ship carpenter- 1 

Brewer - 1 

Mill laborer-1 

Agricultural Statistics ( Production for home use not included)  

In addition to sheep, cows, and swine,  

there were 76 oxen and 180 horses 

2.177 acres of “improved land” 

17, 528 bushels spring wheat 

556 bushels winter wheat 

514 bushels rye 

 

10,826 bushels Indian corn  

11,745 bushels oats 

1,392 bushels barley 

5,019 pounds of Irish potatoes 

4,945 lbs. honey 

16,985 lbs. butter 

420 lbs. cheese 



     A 25’x20’ white frame building  

was constructed and completed 

in 1869.  

     On January 16 and 23, 1870, 

informational meetings were held 

in the small building to discuss 

the formation of a congregation 

and adopting a constitution. Pas-

tor H. Kittel of La Crosse conduct-

ed the meetings.  

     On January 27, 1870, a meeting was 

called. Reinhold Bey was appointed chair-

man and Christoph Froehlke, secretary. 

     Rev. H. Kittel of First Lutheran, La Crosse 

was the pastor. It was at this meeting that a 

constitution was adopted and the new con-

gregation became know as the German 

Evangelical Lutheran St. Matthew’s Congre-

gation in Town Bergen, Vernon County, 

Wisconsin.  

On February 8, 1870, two leaders of our newly established 

church went to La Crosse to have a document notarized 

declaring the new congregation had been founded and es-

tablished. The cost was $1.60.  

Pastor Kittel served as pastor and then Pastor W. Hass, who served other groups in the vicinity,  

finished the year. His salary was $59 per year. Services were probably held only once every 

three or four weeks in each church. Pastor Hass then entered another mission field some miles 

away and no longer felt able to devote adequate time to the Hamburg Parish which included 

the Hamburg Congregation, St. Matthew’s, and another nearby church. (Perhaps St. Johannes 

on Chipmunk Ridge.) On a side note, Pastor Hass gave his last sermon on a Sunday at Hamburg 

in 1890. He was stricken in the pulpit and within a week, he died.  

Pastor Herman Kittel 

Sketches done by Adolph Lindahl 

Pastor W. Hass 



     In 1871, Rev. R. Baarts was called to serve 
this congregation along with the Hamburg 
parish and another nearby congregation. His 
contract included a yearly income of $300, 
twenty bushels of wheat, fifteen to twenty 
bushels of potatoes, and wood for fuel.  

 

     In return for this he was asked to conduct 
services in this congregation on alternate 
Sundays and to teach at Hamburg two 
months of the entire six month teaching peri-
od which was to be distributed in the three 
districts. 

Pastor R. Baarts 

The German Language 

One of the by-laws of the church con-
cerned the German language. It stated: 
“Because the congregation is a German 
one and wishes to remain so, therefore all 
teaching and preaching, as well as all 
open discussions shall be carried on in the 
German language and remain so, as long 
as three members of the church wish to 
keep up the German language. Guest 
preachers may speak in another language 
if they ask permission, and if the pastor 
and the congregation gives the speaker 
such permission.” The German language 
would continue to be used, if not just 
once a month in latter years, until 1951, 
81 years after St. Matthew’s began. 

One of the conditions of membership was 
that one “partake regularly in the church 
services and partake, if possible, of Holy 
Communion at Easter time”.  

     On July 5, 1874, a  congregational meeting con-
sisting of St. Matthew’s and St. Johannes on Chip-
munk Ridge assembled in order to call a pastor for 
these two congregations which formed one parish. 
Unanimously they called the former teacher, Joh. 
Theodor Kuchmann as pastor. He was inducted into 
his office on July 19, 1874 by Carl Bothe of St. Johan-
nes Congregation and by President Reinhod Bay of 
St. Matthew’s. It was approved on August 16, 1874, 
by Pastor G. Fachtinam of Henderson, Minnesota at 
St. Matthew’s. Witnesses were members of both 
congregations.  

There were 6 baptisms during St. Matthew’s first year,  

and one occurring before the church was established. 

Emilie Will, daughter of William and Wilhelmina Will, October 17, 1869 

Friedrich Lamprecht, son of Wilhelm and Christiane Lamprecht, April 18, 1870 

Gustav Bluschke, son of Johann and Henrietta Bluscke, April 18, 1870 

Johann Grosskopf son of Georg and Marie Grosskopf, April 14, 1870 

Paul Wiele, son of Robert and Bertha Wiele, June 6, 1870  

Auguste Bey, daughter of Reinhold and Hulda Bey, December 26, 1870 

Emma Wehling daughter of Wilhelm and Katherina Wehling, December 4, 1870 

Suffer the little children unto come to me, and forbid them not: 

For of such is the kingdom of God.                                Mark 10:14 

     Up until 1874, St, Matthews was served through 
the Hamburg parish, along with the congregation in 
Chaseburg . In that year, St. Matthew’s discontinued 
affiliation with this group for a number of years.  

Top left picture and picture below from a 1918 baptism certificate 
from St. Johannes church. 



Above is the only known photo of St. Johannes Church. It is in 
the background of this Leisso family photo. It was described as 
a quaint small frame church with a small vestibule, large small-
framed windows, high pulpit and Cottage organ. A cemetery 
still marks the nearby location. Pictured are– Row 1: Earl Leisso, 
Irene Leisso, Earl Kuester, Margaret Leisso Granke, Martin Roes-
ler, Jr., and Arthur Leisso. Row 2: William and Mary Leisso and 
Amelia Kuester. (sisters)  

Sketch of St. Johannes Church on Chipmunk Ridge 

     Pastor O. Oerding was called on October 24, 
1880 and arrived in November. Once again, we 
shared a pastor with Chaseburg and Hamburg,  
as well as St. Johannes. Services were probably 
held once or twice a month. His annual salary 
consisted of $120 from Chaseburg, $180 from  

Hamburg, a parsonage, fuel, a bushel of wheat 
and a bushel of potatoes from the head of each 
family, and the use of the land belonging to the 
church property. It was not recorded what St. 
Matthew’s contributed. 

Pastor O. Oerding 

Gifts to St. Matthew’s Congregation in 1874 
 

On Easter Sunday, April 5th, Mr. and Mrs. William Will pre-
sented a chandelier for the church in memory of their moth-
er/mother-in-law, Anna Kelm, and brothers Friedrich, Wil-
helm, Heinrich and sister Augusta Kelm, who were killed in a 
railroad accident near Montreal, Canada on June 29, 1864 
while emigrating from Germany to America. 
 
May 17, On Sunday Exandi (the Sunday after the Ascension) 
School elder Mr. Bay and Church Elder George Mueller, pre-
sented a crucifix in memory of their sister/sister-in-law, Ottilie 
Bay who died on March 28, 1865 
 
Also on May 17, Johann Helke and his wife presented to St. 
Matthews two altar chandeliers and wax candles in memory 
of their children: 
Heinrich Hermann– July 19, 1869—December 29, 1871 
Rosalie- December 8, 1864-January 1, 1872 
Caroline Mathiilda– June 8, 1867-January 20, 1872 
Eva—Born and died on July 29, 1873 
 

May 24, 1874—An altar cloth and pulpit covering were pre-
sented on First Pentecost Day by Mr. Wilhelm Wehling, Mr. 
Reinhold Bay and Mr. George Mueller. They were dedicated 
by teacher Kuchmann, who spoke appropriate words of dedi-
cation to the assembled congregation. 

      

     After church services on January 3, 1875, a meeting was held 
for the election of officers, and also to vote on a building site for 
a parsonage. No agreement was reached by the two parties 
until the president of the St. John’s (Johannes) congregation, 
Carl Bothe volunteered to build a parsonage on his own land if 
the congregation would give him an annual rent of $30. This 
suggestion was unanimously approved. 

     Records were not found of the whereabouts of this parson-
age, or if it was ever built.  

     Pastor Kuchmann served here until October of 1880. 

Rules of the Church Cemetery  

1876—Non-members had to pay $1.00 to be 
buried in the church cemetery 

1879– It was revolved that every church mem-
ber pay 50 cents by March for fencing and de-
liver four fence posts. Whoever did not would 
never have the right to be buried in the church 
cemetery. 

 

1881—Non-members had to pay $2.00 to be 
buried in the church cemetery and be buried at 
the north end. 

1882– Non-members could no longer be buried 
in the cemetery. 



At this time, Stoddard had few trees, as most people farmed a few 
acres of land behind their buildings. Residents numbered around 200 

when the village was incorporated in 1903.   

     Upon Pastor Oerding’s retirement at the end 
of 1890, A meeting was held on January 25, 1891. 
Representatives from Chaseburg, Hamburg, and 
Stoddard voted to call Pastor E.H. Palecheck of 
Alma, Wisconsin. On Easter Sunday, March 29, 
1891 he came to serve our congregation. The 
contract called for one service to be held on each 
Sunday so that each location was to be served 
once in three weeks. The pastor was also to 

teach a parish school at Chaseburg three times a 
week from three to four months a year. The sala-
ry consisted of $450 a year, parsonage, (which 
was located in Chaseburg) fuel, the use of eight 
acres of land connected with the church proper-
ty, and provisions to compensate for teaching. St. 
Johannes Church was still included in this parish 
and was served once a month.  

Pastor E.H. Palechek 

The first Chaseburg Church, built in 1885, with school and parsonage 

     The first Hamburg church was located at the foot of 
the hill of its present day location on the ridge top. Built 
in 1871, it was a box shaped log building with small 
frame windows and a shingled roof and brick chimney. 
It was in 1891 that the present day church was con-
structed on the ridge.  

          It is interesting to note how dedicated these early pastors 
have had to have been. Traveling long distances to these various 
churches on horse and buggy through hills and valleys in all kinds 
of weather had to be very discouraging at times. But the Lord sus-
tained them, allowing his Word to be spread throughout the 
countryside and into the hearts of his people.   

Hamburg Church, built in 1891 (2013 view) 

According to Vernon County history, St. Matthew’s began with 
twenty some families and grew to thirty-five by 1884. 

     St. Matthew’s membership continued to grow and 
the church became too small. It was decided that a larg-
er building would be more suitably located in the village 
of Stoddard. The land that the church was built on was 
donated by the White family, who lived at the north 
edge of town. The frame building was constructed and 
the cornerstone was laid in 1897. Later, brick veneer 
and stained glass windows were added.  

     To allow for more services, in 1897, St. Matthew’s 
conceded to have its meetings in the afternoons of the 
Sunday in which morning services were held in Chase-
burg. St. Johannes congregation was also served in the 
afternoon of alternate Sundays when Hamburg was 
served in the morning. Typically, morning services were 
at 10:00 am and afternoon services at 2:00 pm.  

 

Below: 1903 View of Stoddard 



     The bell tower was added in 1900. The bell was lifted into 
place by a team of horses. Later this bell was placed at St. 
John’s Church in Genoa. Our new bell was hung in the bell 
tower in the early 1920’s.  

     Meanwhile, the old church building was sold to August 
Bay, who tore it down and used the lumber to construct his 
barn. The present day cemetery has expanded and covers 
the ground where the church once stood.  

Above: Main Street Stoddard, 1895 

Below, left and right:  Two different scenes of Main Street, Stoddard, originally known as Lover’s Lane, facing north.  
Imagine our early members gathering to worship, traveling on these paths and dirt roads..  

Above: The Burlington Northern Railroad Depot in Stoddard. At 
this time, passenger trains also came through this area. In 

1967, this service was discontinued and the depot in Stoddard 
was removed.   

The Ladies’ Aid was organized in 1904 

Left: Picture 
from a portion 
of a confirma-
tion picture 
from 1898. 
Translated—
Take and eat! - 
Take and drink! 



     On June 6, 1906, at 6 pm, a tornado swept through the 
Stoddard region. While the church had no reported damage, 
some of our members suffered some losses. It was also stated 
that the Hamburg church seemed to be miraculously spared 

while many other buildings were destroyed in the surrounding 
area. Witnesses reported that when the funnel came over the 
river, it sucked the water into the air and they could see the 
bottom of the river. Fish were found on a farm on Oak Ridge. 

The first confirmation class was confirmed in St. Matthew’s in 1910. 
Before that time, they were confirmed at Chaseburg.  

Below: The Charlie Zink farm 

On April 27, 1916, the whole parish together with the 
Mississippi Valley Conference celebrated the 25th anni-
versary of Pastor Palechek’s uninterrupted service in the 
congregations. Pastor Siegler, who officiated at the time 
of his installation, preached the sermon. On the following 
day, Pastor Palechek and his wife celebrated their 25th 
wedding anniversary. Pastor Nicolaus, who performed 
their ceremony, again officiated. Pastor Palechek was 
presented with a pail of silver dollars sufficient to pur-
chase the first car to be used by a pastor in this area.  

Below: Stoddard, 1916 

Holy communion services were conducted on a quarterly basis until 
1910, when they repeated every two months. 

Services were originally conducted entirely in German. As early as 
1912, English began to be used, as the younger generation drifted 

from the native language.  



The 20’s –the 50’s 
     On May 6, 1923, St. 
Matthew’s became an 
independent parish 
and Pastor I.M. 
Brackebusch, at age 
29, became  our first 
resident pastor. Day 
school was conducted 
one month on the 
ridge and one month 
at Stoddard.       

     It was during the 
ministry of Pastor Brachebush that St. John’s of Genoa 
joined our congregation in sharing a pastor. The St. 
Johannes congregation on the ridge dissolved around 
this time, with its members joining either St. Peter’s of 
Hamburg, or St. Matthew’s in Stoddard.  

Below: St. Johns, Genoa  
(1960’s view) 

Below: The first known photo of a confirmation class at St. Matthew’s 

Below: From left to right— the parsonage, the school, and the church. 

     The present parsonage was purchased from Lonnie Scholl in the 
1920’s. The church park property was purchased in 1927 from the 
Nottingham family for $1400. This included a Catholic church building 
which was later used as our Christian Day School and Saturday School.  

Pastor Brackebusch was involved in mission work. Below is a clip 
from September of 1924. His guests from Germany gave a presenta-
tion of work done among orphans and the elderly in their country.  

1926 Confirmation Class 

     Heating was done with wood in the church and 
school buildings. The price was $4.00 per load. Total 

for the 1925-1926 winter was $49.00. 

He also officiated at 
a Lutheran English 

mission in La Crosse  
in 1928. 

Note the rug in the 
1923 photo.  



     A long time tradition was evident back 
in 1926. Pictured  at left is the bill for the 
treat bags given out at Christmas. The ap-
ples were $5.50, candy $10.29; nuts 
$12.72 and 75 bags were 50 cents, for a 
total cost of $29.01 

     “The LORD gave and the 
LORD has taken away; may the 
name of the LORD be praised.” 
Job 1:21. This Bible verse may 
have come to mind to Pastor 
Brackebusch when, during his 
fifth year in his ministry here in 
1928, God called his wife Es-
ther home to heaven, leaving 
him with their four year old 
daughter, Dorothy. 
     Members of St. Matthew’s 
surely had compassion for him, 
and demonstrating their Chris-
tian love, surprised him with a 
party on his 33rd birthday later 
that year. 
     God had blessed Pastor 
Brackebusch with a second 
wife, the wedding taking place 
on Christmas day, 1929. They 
were later blessed with a baby 
girl who was baptized on 
Christmas day the following 
year. 

April 29, 1928 

November 28, 1928 

December 28, 1930 

Pastor Brackebusch directed the Stoddard 
choir at the 400th anniversary of Luther’s 
catechism and the anniversary of his birth.  

1 

9 

2 

9 

Electricity Comes to  

St. Matthew’s 

     The church, school, and parsonage were 
wired for electricity for $399.01 in 1929-
1930 by Oscar Stellner.  

December 26, 1929 



     Pastor H. E. 
Bentrup became 
our pastor in De-
cember of 1932. 

In 1930, new monthly envelopes for offerings 
were introduced, replacing the quarterly ones. 

     In this September 7, 1933 clipping from the La Crosse Tribune at 
right, it states that Pastor Bentrup was a missionary among the 
Chinese people. He was one of the speakers at Mt. Calvary’s Mis-
sion Festival.  



     St. Matthew’s began a Christian Day 
School in 1933. Our first teacher was Mr. 
Ervin Humann. On the following pages, be-
ginning with his time here with us, are his 
memoirs that he wrote during his later years 
at the urging of his family. We thank the Hu-
mann family for granting us permission to 
include this glimpse at life during the Great 
Depression. 

May 22, 1934 

     In January of 1933, St. Matthews’ 
voted to start a Christian Day School. 
The vote was 20 for and 14 against. 
Pastor Bentrup offered to teach it 
himself if that were the only way of 
getting it started, but urged the con-
gregation to get a teacher. Twenty 
students were promised for the fall, 
but not for the winter. The question 
was to start it immediately, with five 
months left to the school year, or 
wait until fall. Pastor Bentrup be-
lieved in “hitting the iron when it is 
hot”, and sent a request letter to the 
president of Dr. Martin Luther Col-
lege. The salary was fixed at $50 per 
month. The requested qualifications 
were the ability to play the organ, 
help with choir and Sunday school,  
and above else, have a passion for 
souls.  His hope was, with the help of 
God, that the school would flourish 
and grow to forty pupils.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     Realizing that the request was 
made in the middle of the school 
year, Pastor Bentrup was hoping for 
just a student. But he received a reply 
from Professor E.R. Bliefernicht  
stating that there were two male 
graduates who had not received calls 
in last June’s graduating class. One 
was Ervin Humann from South Dakota  
who would fit our needs and was 
“very earnest and conscientious, a 
fair organist, and one whose heart is 
in the right place, who will in every 
way cooperate with his pastor”. Pro-
fessor Bliefernicht found it refreshing 
and encouraging that we wanted to 
start a Christian school when so many 
pastors at that time claimed it was 
impossible to begin one. He also stat-
ed that salary wasn’t a concern be-
cause all of the young men were ex-
pecting to go into this work for the 
Lord’s sake, and not for earthly gain.  



















June 5, 1934, La Crosse Tribune 

October 30, 1935 

August 28, 1934 

August 28, 1936 

May 5, 1934 

Graduations, confirmations, anniversaries, 
mission festivals, and birthday parties were 

all a part of St. Matthew’s events in the 30’s. 
Teacher conferences were also held back in 

that era. 



May 27, 1936 

May 22, 1937 

     The December 24, 1936 issue 

of The La Crosse Tribune had a 

detailed description  of the Chil-

dren’s Christmas Eve service 

which would take place that 

evening at 7:30 pm. It gave the 

children’s names, along with the 

recitations and the songs that 

would be sung.  

     A glimpse into what school life was 
like back in the 30’s. Not only was there 
reading, writing, arithmetic, and religion, 
there appeared to be a lot of hard work 
going on. And, when a break was need-
ed, there was recess. Can you imagine 
the ride going down this contraption 
pictured at right? 



August 18, 1937 

June 17, 1937 

April 14, 1938 

August 25, 1937 

      

     St. Matthew’s was outreach-
minded even back in the 30’s  
as we invited the public to 
school programs and picnics. 
Pastor Bentrup also arranged 
for a well known harpist to give 
a free concert here to which 
the public was invited.  

     After the school closed, the Humanns 
took on various jobs until he got a call in 
late 1937, teaching briefly in Fairmont, 
MN, then 6 years in Helenville, WI, and 
18 years at Stevensville, MI. They then 
taught in Wausau, WI until 1967 when 

the both retired. 

Above: Pastor Bentrup, his 
wife, and children - Ruth, 
Herman, Edmund, and Wal-
do. Ruth attended Dr. Martin 
Luther College, and her 
brothers, Concordia College, 
St. Paul, MN. 



June 17, 1939 

    In 1939, a balcony was added and the church proper 
was redecorated. Also, a new basement entrance was 
built.  

In 1940, it was approved to have two English services 
and one German service.  

     An informal picture was 
taken at the confirmation of 
these five young people, with 
the church in the background. 

 

     In November of 1940, Pas-
tor Bentrup accepted a call to 
Wilson, MN. A farewell party 
was held as noted in this No-
vember 20, 1940 clipping at 
right.  

May 25, 1939 



     Pastor F. Schroeder was installed as our pastor on December 2, 1940. 

July 17, 1941 

A Young People's Society began on July 
15, 1941. Once confirmed, a young per-
son became a member of this group. It 
provided a way for them to gather to-
gether, study the Bible, and socialize. Spe-
cial events included bowling, skating, and 
sledding parties.   

1941 
• New hymnals 

were purchased 
and a new order 
of service was 
used.  

• Sunday School 
was replaced 
with Saturday 
School. 

• A six week sum-
mer school was 
held. 

1943—City water was piped into the parsonage.  

1945—Our school bell was donated to Pickwick Mission. 

 
—German services were held on the last 

Sunday of the month. 

1945 



La Crosse Tribune, August 16, 1945 

January 9, 1946 

75th Anniversary 

Member Memory 
    

     It was a custom that came from 

Germany that the men would sit on 

one side of the church and the women 

on the other. When I got married and 

joined the church, Pastor Schroeder’s 

goal was to have the families sit to-

gether. The first time I came to church 

after our wedding, I was brave enough 

to sit with my husband. I felt many 

eyes staring at me, and I never looked 

back. After church, Pastor Schroeder 

had a prayer addressing this goal. In 

the next few weeks, four or five more 

women joined their husbands, and 

eventually families sat together. 

                                   - Lucille Klahn 

In 1945, German services were held 
on the last Sunday of the month.  



July 15, 1946  

Pastor Otto Engel came to St, 

Matthew’s on February 3, 1946 

June 27, 1947 

     On June 29, 1947, a 
rally was held for area 
churches interested in 
establishing a Lutheran 
High School in the area. 
A committee had been 
formed already in 1944 
to look into this  matter.  
It was finally on Septem-
ber 14, 1957 that Luther 
High School opened its 
doors to twenty 9th 
graders. Surrounding the 
building at that time  
was sand, and nearby 
were cows from the 
neighboring fields.  

     Our school building was no 
longer being used, and it was 
sold to Grace Lutheran 
Church in La Crosse for 
$1,000. It was moved to a site 
on 26th Street and Ward Ave-
nue. Considerable renovation 
was done on the building. 
Improvements included a 
sacristy, altar niche, organ 
loft, front entrance, and a 
new steeple. New windows 
were also put in. The ceiling 
was arched, and pews, an 
altar, lectern and a pulpit 
were added. Pictured at left is 
the final result. (1960) 

 

Left: 
The Luther 

Rally at 
Myrick 
Park in 
1947.  



     The importance of teaching 

God’s Word to our children 

was emphasized here in this 

selection from a 1947 bulletin 

to the left.  

     Below from the same year is 

a call for War Relief aid for 

those yet suffering in Europe 

two years after World War II.  

     The bulletin ex-
cerpt at right gives a 
glimpse of the busy 
December schedule 
in 1949.  

     It is interesting to 
note that back in the 
40’s, one registered 
for communion some 
days prior to the ser-
vice.   

December 6, 1949 



December 23, 1951 

We welcomed Pastor 

Gerhardt Kionka as our 

pastor in March of 1950.  

Pastor Kionka held occa-

sional German services in 

that year. However, with 

about eight older Ger-

man members passing 

away that same year, by 

mutual consent, German 

services were discontin-

ued in 1951. 

Student’s Bible History book 



December 23, 1954 

September 17, 1953 

In 1953, a new furnace room and 
bathrooms were added to the rear 
of the church. Due to this construc-
tion, there was no dinner at that 
year’s Mission Fest.  

Pastor Jonathan 
Schaller was installed 
as our pastor in April 
of 1956. 

 Member Memory 
On Christmas eve, to march into 
church for the children’s program, 
we would come out the basement 
doorway and walk around to the 
front steps and into the church. 
The girls would have their coats 
draped over their shoulders and 
hand them to someone before 
walking up in front.  

                                  -Mary Stellick 

Member Memory 
The men would gather to talk under-
neath the shade trees before the ser-
vice until it was almost time for the 
worship to begin. 

                                     - Ken Abraham 

Old Testament Bible Stories 
student book 

Many couples 

began their mar-

ried lives at our 

church. 



     The dreams of the forefathers 

from the forties were realized 

when Luther High School opened in 

1957.  Pastor Schaller served as 

liturgist at the Cornerstone Laying 

service on June 23, 1957. 



The Young People’s Society 

was an active group back in 

the 1950’s 

Mission Fest was a big event with two services. The morning 
worship time was switched with St. John’s, a big dinner was 
served, and then a 2 pm service was held with a guest preacher. 

Pastor Schaller’s  ministry here ended abruptly in October of 

1959 when part of our congregation followed him in forming 

a new congregation of independent Lutherans called the 

Church of the Lutheran Confession.  



Pastor Gieschen was 

installed on February 

14, 1960. 

Ladies gather together for a meeting in 1962 



 

     In 1962, the interior of the 
church was redecorated and 
the addition of two front 
rooms and the enclosing of the 
front steps was completed. 
One room served as the pas-
tor's study and office, and the 
other, a classroom. Other ren-
ovations included new tile 
flooring and new ceiling, exte-
rior painting, and redecorating 
the interior, including a new 
pulpit. The project was com-
pleted in December of 1962.         

     We received pews from 
Immanuel of Lacrosse, which 
had to be shortened to fit.  

      

On February 17, 1963, a dedication 
service was held for the addition of 
two rooms and the newly redeco-
rated church. Former St. Matthew's 
pastor, Rev. Otto Engel, delivered 
the sermon in the morning service. 
Lunch was served by the ladies, 
and a special song service was pre-
sented by the St. Matthew's choir 
under the direction of Oscar 
Wehling in the afternoon. A song 
composed by the Rev. Ernest 
Schoenike, "Behold, Bless Ye the 
Lord", was dedicated to the St. 
Matthew's choir, and made its pub-
lic debut.  

Below: A before and after view of the church’s addition.  

Above right: The old pulpit in front and the new in the 
back before it was painted. 

Joseph Stellick 

Below: A newspaper clipping from 1964 



Pastor Gieschen accepted a call and bid us farewell in February 
of 1967. Pastor Berg, who recently completed his studies at 
the seminary, was installed on July 9, 1967.     

At right:                 
A worship scene 
from the 1960’s. 

Saturday school 
teachers were paid 
$2.50 each week. 



 St. Matthew’s celebrated its 100th anniversary on August 
16, 1970. Pastor Norbert Gieschen, now from St. John’s, 
Wood Lake, MN, returned here to preach the morning 
sermon. Special music was provided by the St. Matthew’s 
choir and the children of the congregation. Members of 
the Young People’s Society had a picture display of past 
confirmation pictures on the church grounds and served 
punch as members visited with each other. Dinner was 
served at 11:30 at the American Legion Hall. In the after-
noon, our former pastor, Rev. Gerhardt Kionka now of 
Menominee, Michigan, spoke at the outdoor afternoon 

service. The choir and children sang once again. A light lunch was served on the south side of the church. Pastor Kionka reminisced 
that some ladies of the congregation had told him when he left, “You were the first pastor we were not able to fatten up”. He said 
that they were surprised when he returned thirty pounds heavier on this day, and wasn’t recognized at first.  

     Many gifts were donated by members to help beautify our church. Included were:  

Stained glass windows in the naïve by Mr. & Mrs. Carl Groth, Mr. & Mrs. Theo Bay, Mr. & Mrs. John Beitlich,                                      
Mr. & Mrs. Albert  Anderson, Mr. & Mrs. R.J. Beitlich, and the children of Mr. & Mrs. Frank White  

Altar by Gust Wrobel 

Electric candelabras in memory of Mr. John Soucheck and Mrs. Joseph 
Stellick by their spouses 

Collection plates by Mr. & Mrs. Joseph Stellick on their 46th wedding an-
niversary 

Missal stand in memory of Albert H. Wrobel 

Lectern by Mt. Calvary Church, La Crosse 

Short stem flower vases by Mr. & Mrs. Albert Klum on their golden wed-
ding anniversary 

The population of Stoddard was 750 in 1970. 



To commemorate the church’s 

100th anniversary, our first 

pictorial directory was intro-

duced. 

These Saturday school class-

room scenes give a glimpse of 

the  interior of other areas of 

the church.  



A new church sign, made by 
Pastor Berg’s father, Lyle Berg. 

     In 1970, the congregation 
worked together to make chris-
mons for the Christmas tree. La-
dies went to rummage sales to 
search for beads and other mate-
rials. Many were assembled at 
home, and the children worked 
on simpler ones in Saturday 
school. Each was a symbol of 
Christianity. The Children’s Christ-
mas Eve service was focused 
around them, the children ex-
plaining the meaning of each. We 
shared them with St. John’s of 
Genoa for some time, switching 
every other year, until they were 
saved just for special years be-
cause of their fragility.  

For many years, the Lawrynk family 
provided huge live trees to adorn our 
sanctuary. 

Right: A Christ-
mas gift given by 

the Saturday 
school teachers 
to the children. 



Choir robes were made by the Ladies’ 

Aid for the children to wear on special 

occasions. The younger children felt 

proud to wear them, while older ones 

tolerated them. In later years, they 

became dish towels for the church.  

Pastor Berg accepted a call to 

Oronoco, MN early in 1972, 

and Pastor Lambert served as 

our vacancy pastor. Pastor 

J.D. Liggett was installed in 

August of 1972, having re-

cently graduated from the 

seminary. He arrived with his 

wife Rosie, and baby daugh-

ter, Elizabeth.  

In 1973, new front doors were 
installed, along with new 
lights in the basement and 
office. A night watch light was 
also put up.  

At left: Easter, 1970. The 

picture on the right 

shows the Easter tree 

from 1971. A cross was 

made from the trunk of 

the Christmas tree from 

the previous year. It was 

then decorated with 

Easter lilies. Notice the 

chrismons representing 

the trinity towards the 

top of the tree.  

Jeff & Greg Miller 

Long time members will remember the china that was used 
for every meal served at church, pictured below. 



In 1974, we began to support a teacher, Mr. David Enter, at Mt. 
Calvary Lutheran School in La Crosse. Many of our students 
attended. Pastor Liggett drove a bus, taking the children to Mt. 
Calvary, taught catechism class there, and then he drove the bus 
to the hospital to visit people there.  

Saturday school 
chart and Books of 
the Bible list 

1976: America was 
celebrating its 200th 
birthday. Stoddard 
held a big celebration 
one weekend in June, 
with a big parade on 
Sunday. St. Matthew’s 
had its own float, with 
Ken Abraham posing 
as a pastor and the 
Lowry family as church 
members. The theme: 
“God Shed His Grace 
on Thee”.  

The Boy and Girl Pioneers in the parade. 



The float from the parade also served as the stage for                  
outdoor services.         . 

Below: Picture taken at St. John’s, Genoa 

The 1978 confirmation 

class on June 4, taken at St. 

Matthew’s. The newly con-

firmed members lined up 

outside to be greeted and 

congratulated. 



     At this time, St. Matthew’s had 330 baptized members, of 
whom 256 were confirmed.  St. John’s numbers were 169 
baptized and 124 confirmed. 

     With many of our children attending Mt. Calvary School, along 

with some from St. Peter’s in Chaseburg and Hamburg, and from 

St. John’s in Genoa, the idea of a Christian Day School in this area 

seemed to be feasible. Already at the annual meeting in 1977, 

there was discussion of a future planning and grounds com-

mittee.  

     Also, our present church was showing its age. The basement, 

made of limestone, was crumbling. The building was not energy 

efficient.  It no longer seemed adequate for the worship and 

church business activities which needed to be performed with 

our growing numbers. 

     Three men were appointed to this committee in February of 

that year. They met with the Chaseburg, Hamburg, and Genoa 

congregations in April. A month later they met with the church 

council to discuss their findings on property and cost of a new 

church and school. In October, the church council discussed the 

formation of a building committee, but in December the resolu-

tion to form a building committee failed. (Yes- 39, No- 25) 48 yes 

votes would have been needed to meet the required 75%. 

     In April of 1978, four congregational members met with the 

joint council and once again, recommend that a building com-

mittee be formed. A vote was taken on June 11, and this time it 

passed with 30 yes votes and 12 no. 

 Ladies were busy at work making altar cloths in the church basement.                                                                                                                  

Pictured are Karen Miller, Mildred Leisso, Helen Soucheck and Dorothy Michel. 

 Member Memory  

“One of the pews in the old church had a 
crack in its back and was uncomfortable to 
lean back upon. The seat was also slightly 
tipped downward so you would have to 
hold yourself in, or else you would slide 
out. People avoided that one, and if you 
were one of the later ones in getting to 
church, you would be the one that ended 
up in that pew.’” 

                                                  -Karen Fischer 

A common sight after church every Sunday. People gathered 

outside in Christian fellowship on the sidewalk to visit after 

the service. 

 Member Memory  

“I rode with Pastor Liggett to the service at St. John’s when I 
played the organ. After church on our way back from Genoa 
he would always say ‘It’s another day closer to heaven.’”  

                                                                                -Dan Wiese 



     Two weeks later the newly elected joint building com-
mittee met for the first time. Their work continued 
throughout the summer. On October 4, 1978, there was a 
congregation information meeting to discuss the com-
mittee’s final report and recommendations. On October 8, 
these recommendations were put to the vote: 

Joint congregation vote on the school:  

Yes-40    No-30 

St. Matthew’s vote on the new church: 

Yes-39    No-16 

“While the building committee and church 
council were in the basement making 
plans for our new church and school, I was 
up in a side room taking a census of how 
much money people would donate toward 
the down payment or how much they 
could pledge. We needed to come up with 
$25,000. It was unbelievable to me how 
some of our widows would pledge $1000. 
Within an hour and a half, I had the great-
est joy of being able to go downstairs and 
tell the guys, ‘Go for it. We have the 
$25,000 in hand or pledged.’” 

                                                  -Ralph Stellick 

 Member Memory The Last Service in the Old Church                                                         

& Ground Breaking Service 
     October 22, 1978 was a bittersweet day at St. Matthew’s. After 81 years of 
people passing through its doors to worship, it marked the last day they would 
do so. The Ground Breaking service was held afterwards, as people filed outside 
on a chilly rainy morning. A potluck dinner followed the ceremony. Approxi-
mately 325 people were present to mark this historic occasion. 



In this church’s 81 years, many infants were carried in by their parents to be baptized, young people were confirmed,              
many happy couple began their married lives, and some came for their last time. One final look:   

 The ladies of the congregation served lunch and had a bake sale 
at the auction. The proceeds were used to purchase equipment 
for the new kitchen.  

Members worked at packing up items from the church                                                                                               
in preparation of the auction and demolition. 

     On October 28, 1978, an auction was held to raise 
money for the parking lot fund. “It looked as if the Lord 
was having a garage sale.” began an article in the La 
Crosse Tribune. Items for sale included stained glass win-
dows, pews, hymnals, the altar, a lectern, and the pulpit.  
Mr. R. Jerome Boge, the auctioneer, donated his services 
to help raise $5779.00.  

The LACE loan from 
the Synod for the 

new church was the 
largest of its time.  



     The church was turned over to Clem-
ents Construction for demolition on Octo-
ber 30. The demolition was handled by 
Harry Viner Construction Co. and took 
place the first two weeks in November. 
The bell was removed and would be saved 
for the new tower.   

     While the new church was being built, 
meetings were held in members’ homes, and 
worship services were held at the Stoddard 
American Legion Hall from the last Sunday in 
October until the last Sunday in July. People set 
up chairs before the service and took them 
down afterwards. It didn’t matter if we weren’t 
in a church building, as long as God’s Word was 
preached. The Children’s Christmas Eve Service 
was held there, complete with treat bags.  

“Some people didn’t want change. 
Some were crying. Some were hap-
py—looking to the future of a new 
church.”                         -Pastor Liggett 



Under the able leadership of the chairman, Evan 
Lowrey, the building committee carried the lion’s 
share of the work in planning, detailing and ad-
ministrating the building program. The twelve 
men building committee chose Mr. John Clements 
of Cashton, WI as general contractor. The archi-
tect was Tesch-Tesch Association of Fond du Lac, 
WI. Estimated cost was $89,800 for the 52 x 52 
foot church and $135,000 for the 64 x 112 foot 
school. Fall construction was completed in De-
cember when the footings were poured. Work 
resumed  in the spring of 1979. This new, energy 
efficient church would have room for 264 people 
while the old church had room for 163. 

In the base of the bell tower was put the refur-
bished stone from the old bell tower. The tower 
also contains the carillon speakers and on top, a 
stainless steel cross was placed.  

The sod for the landscaping was donated by Oscar 
Miller from his cow pasture. Members cut, rolled, 
and loaded the sod in a wagon and then unrolled it 
on the church ground for we could have an instant 
lawn. (Complete with fertilizer to give it a good start.) 

Meanwhile, on a farm where our old sister congre-
gation, St. Johannes Church once stood, construc-
tion was underway for the bell tower. Phil Leisso 
designed and built the tower, with Dave Zahn as 
engineer. It was an exact fit to the base. It was one 
of several items donated by a member. 



Cornerstone Sunday 
An outdoor service was held in the church park on 
Sunday, July 1, 1979 for the cornerstone laying cere-
mony. Pastor Lyle Schalow of St. Peter’s Chaseburg 
& Hamburg was the guest preacher.  

Among the items placed in the cornerstone were a 
KJV & a NIV version of the Bible, a catechism, the 
centennial booklet from 1970, newspaper clippings 
of our building project, the July 1 issue of the La 
Crosse Tribune, June 28  issue of the Vernon County 
Broadcaster, June 27 issue of the Chipmunk Coulee 
Press (a Stoddard newspaper), our membership di-
rectory, our constitution and by-laws, “This We Be-
lieve” and various service folders.  

229 people gathered together to observe this special occasion. Afterwards, 
there was an open house and a lunch was served.  

We began worshipping and giving thanks to our Lord in the brand new 
church on July 29. 

Dedication 
Dedication of the new church was held on the 
morning of September 16. Pastor Roger Sachs 
preached a sermon from 1 Samuel 7:5-12, “These 
Stones Speak to Us”. An open house was held and 
refreshments were served by the Lutheran Pio-
neer groups.                                                                               
In the afternoon, the dedication for St.Matthew’s-
St. John’s Lutheran School was held. Pastor Glenn 
Moldenhauer was our guest speaker, bringing us 
the message from Deuteronomy 6:4-9, “Everyday 
Routine”. 

The balcony wasn’t part of the 
original plans, but one couple 
from our church took out a loan 
for its construction and did much 
of the labor in finishing it. 



To end the year 
and the decade, 

our bell tower was 
dedicated on 

Christmas day, 
1979. 

The tower was 
built so well that it 

was said, in jest, 
that if a train came 

off the track and 
hit the tower, it 

would still stand.  

Our school welcomed 27 students in its 
first year. Mr. David Enter, whom we 
supported at Mt. Calvary, became our 
principal and teacher for grades 5-8. 
Mrs. Barbara Seidl was called to teach 
grades 1-4. 

St. Matthews—St. John’s Lutheran School first students.     1979-1980 school year 

David Enter Barbara Seidl 



The 80’s & the 90’s 

We                  

celebrated                            

our 110th anniversary   

in 1980. Our second pic-

torial directory was pub-

lished. 

Choir 

Council, School Board, Organists 

Girl Pioneers 

Finance Committee 

Saturday School  

Ushers 



We welcomed Pastor Russell 
Kloehn and his wife Verona, 

and children Renee, Sara, Ra-
chel and Jonathan in 1982 
after 

Pastor 
Liggett 

accepted 
a call to 
Sleepy 

Eye, Min-
nesota. 

The early 80’s brought additional facul-
ty members. Miss Mary Brinkman 
(who eventually became Mrs. 
Schalow) began teaching the middle 
grades in 1980. She was supported by 
St. Peter’s. 

Mrs. Jerene Beitlich saw the need for a 
pre-school program and began it in the 

fall of 1981, meeting once a week on 
Tuesday afternoons.  

With a gap between pre-
school and first grade, it was 

decided to call a kindergarten 
teacher to bridge that gap. 
Mrs. Mary Sill accepted our 
call and joined us in 1982. 

The picture at right 
may be of poor qual-
ity, but older mem-
bers will remember 
the many trees 
around the church 
property and the 
gravel driveway. 

Luther High School 
celebrated its 25th 

year in 1982. 



From 1983 to 1987, a Young People’s Society was held once 
again for our youth in 9th grade and up, meeting once a 

month. Besides discussing a topic, activities included roller-
skating, bowling and hayrides. 

In 1984, St. Matthew’s had 416 baptized members and 334 
communicant members. 

Enrollment for our school in 1983-1984 was 63. 

In 1985, with St. John’s members joining  St. Matthew’s , our 
numbers grew to 457 baptized members and 362 communi-
cant members. 

78 children were enrolled in our school during the 1985-1986 
school year.  

In 1986, Saturday school was changed to Wednesday school , 
meeting in the evening from 6-8 pm., with an enrollment of 
16. In 1988, the change was made to Sunday School. 

In 1983, the west half of the Leland Slack property was pur-
chased, thinking ahead for long range building plans. 

1984 brought a name change to our school. St. John’s of 
Genoa closed and all ownership of the school went to St. 

Matthew’s, thus instead of being St. Matthew’s -St. John’s, it 
was merely St. Matthew’s. Families from St. John’s trans-
ferred either to St. Matthew’s or St. Peter’s in Chaseburg. 

The Duane Beitlich Scholarship Fund was established shortly 
after our school began. The money is the interest that is 
earned from a CD and awarded to a graduating 8th grade 
student continuing their Christian education to be put to-
wards their tuition.  



In 1986, Mr. David Enter 

accepted a call to teach in 

Janesville, WI. Mr. Peter 

Kuske emergency taught the 

upper grades for the 1986-

1987 school year. Pastor 

Kloehn served as principal 

that year.  

The congregation 

voted at a special 

meeting in 1988 to 

purchase a bus for 

the purpose of 

transporting the 

children of our 

congregation who 

live in the La 

Crosse school dis-

trict. This decision 

bore immediate fruit when our school gained 11 new students di-

rectly because of the bus. Bus drivers were Linda Manske and Lorie 

Proksch. In that year, 20 students rode this bus. Total enrollment for 

the 1988-1989 school year was 78. 

In 1987, Mr. Scott 

Huebner accepted our 

call as principal and 

teacher of grades 6-8. 

The Boy Pioneers had been meeting for the last several years under 

the leadership of Ken Morey, and also Willard Beitlich in 1989. Eight 

boys regularly attended. The Girl Pioneers started up again in 1988 

with nine girls. Sally Peterson was their leader. The following year, 

Kris Shepard became leader of the 7-8 grade girls while Karel Leisso 

was in charge of the 4-6.  

Also in 1989, we were blessed with the addition of the Sunbeams 

for grades 2-3. This group was directed by Eileen Wuolle and had 

four members.  

The Pioneer program included Scripture based teaching and applica-

tion of good citizenship, a knowledge of the beauties of God’s crea-

tion, first aid, crafts, safety, and many other useful skills of interest.  

Special activities included a roller skating party, a picnic, a camp-

out, and a Halloween party. The boys had an aluminum can drive. 

The girls made aprons and ornaments  for a Christmas craft sale. 



September 17, 1989  was a joyous day in the history of St. 
Matthew’s. We celebrated the 10th anniversary of our new 
church, and through the grace of God, we were able to burn 
our mortgage. A special service of thanks was held, with Pas-
tor J. D. Liggett returning as our guest speaker. Dinner was 
served by the American Legion Auxiliary at the Stoddard Le-
gion Hall. Afternoon events included informal fellowhip with 
various appointed speakers along with anyone else who 
wished to share something. A picture display was put togeth-
er and the video of the church history was shown throughout 
the day. Many visitors shared in our celebration, including 
former pastors and teachers.  

Pastor & Mrs. Robert Berg 

Some comments that were heard on this special day: 
“Are we really debt free? Is it ALL paid?” 

“I just wanted to clap after 
the mortgage was burned.”               

“I didn’t want it to end. I 
wanted to stay at church 

and for it all to keep going.”              
“The speakers in the after-
noon fellowship did a great 

job; the meal was great; 
everything was so well 

done”.                             
“Many tears of joy and 
thanksgiving to God are 

being shed today.”                                 
“God be praised!” Sketch by Alda Kromke 



 Member Memory 
“For our 40th wedding anniversary, 
Harold and I wanted to give a gift to 
the church, We went together with 
Oscar and Irma Wehling and Lester 

Nicholai, and purchased the carillon.”               
-Elaine Wrobel             

In 1989, the new carillon system was dedicated. Stained glass windows replaced the gold colored ones in the sanctuary. 

     Early on the morning of Sunday, January 21, 1990, there was an 
electrical fire in the parsonage. All praise and thanks to God that no 
lives or possessions were lost. At this time, there were two Sunday 
services—one at 8:30 am and the other at 10:30 am, with Bible 
study in between. Only the 8:30 service was held on that day.   

     The Stoddard volunteer firemen were quick to respond. Many 
people moved the possessions out of the parsonage and stored 
them. The Kloehns were given use of one of our member’s house 
for four months. Much Christian love was displayed by providing 
food, helping with the moving, laying sod, sharing their expertise 
and time in their fields of staining/varnishing, plumbing work, elec-
trical work, and heating and air conditioning; and giving of mone-
tary donations. An open house was held in June.  

     The old parsonage was sold to a church member who moved it 
and renovated it. The garage was also moved and used for storage. 

Below:  2015 view of the new parsonage.      Also in January of 1990, the long range planning committee that 
was formed in 1988 was to check on fixing the siding on the church 
and investigate development of the property north and west of the 
school. 



 June 7, 1992: A building committee was 
formed at a special congregational 
meeting to bring back costs and a pre-
liminary plan for an addition.  

February 28, 1993: The building com-
mittee presented their recommenda-
tions to the congregation.  

March 21, 1993: At a special voter’s 
meeting, after the building committee 
recommended that we build now, 
trusting that God would continue to pro-
vide, the voters approved to obtain bids 
from contractors, to check on the best 
funding source and to start a designated 
building fund. 

May 16, 1993: The $235,000 activity 
center and classroom addition was ap-
proved by the voters. There would also 
be some remodeling done. Pastor’s 
office would be moved from the front of 
the church to the fellowship hall area, a 
storage room added, and the kitchen 
would be part of the new addition. Some 
exterior work was also scheduled. 

Scenes from E.B.G.B. Day 

     The focus of the Evangelism committee 
in 1993 was in two major areas. First, to 
promote fellowship among our own 
members and encourage church involve-
ment. Secondly, to continue to reach out 
to the unchurched in the area. Three 
events were facilitated—a rollerskating 
party in January, a brunch after church 
followed by games for all ages, (E.B.G.B. 
Day—Everybody for Board Games and 
Brunch), and a picnic later in the summer.  

     The committee also sent regular mail-
ings to the families on the prospect list 
that they developed through the previous 
year’s telephone survey. Follow up calls 
to these families were made and about a 
dozen still wished to hear from us.  

     They also set up three sub-
committees: a welcoming committee, a 
media committee that would contact the 
mass media to advertise upcoming 
events; and a video committee to tape 
church and school events to be edited 
into a single tape to show to prospective 
members of what we are all about.  



Playground space 
would be lost, 
but the activity 
center would far 
more benefit 
everyone. Trees 
were cleared 
with the help of 
both young and 
old alike. 

For the picnic on the last day of school, 
Pastor Kloehn grilled 200 of his famous 
hamburgers which were then soaked in 
a beer broth before serving. The stu-
dents enjoyed their last time on this part 
of the playground. 

 

At right, 

the last 

Night at 

School in 

the crowd-

ed fellow-

ship hall. 

The children sing at confirmation. 



Groundbreaking Service for the New Addition 

On June 6, 1993, ground was broke for the new addition to our school. About 130 
people were in attendance. After the service, cake and ice cream were served as 
people were invited to look around the building and view the plans. 

Construction began in June and continued throughout the summer. St. Matthew’s would be the general contractor. Excavating, 

concrete foundations, masonry work, plumbing, electrical work, and heating and ventilating for the new structure was done by 

subcontractors. Much of the work was done by Christians working together. That included the roofing, painting and staining; re-

modeling to move the office, storage room and kitchen; repairing and replacing siding as needed, and installing the concrete face 

blocks on the north side of the building to match the addition.  





Proceeds from our annual rummage sale went towards the 
building fund. It was one of many fund raisers held this year.  

In spite of the busyness of that summer, activities 
went on as usual, including Vacation Bible School. 

Work continued the rest of the year and into the spring.                              
The new classroom was ready to move into in April.  



Church Picnic 
There was a huge turnout for the church picnic in 

1993. The VBS children sang in the morning service, 
and Ralph Proksch played his accordion. Lunch was 
served, and afterwards there were organized games 
and fun for all ages. Cheering and laughter could be 
heard from every corner of the church grounds. A 

balloon toss wound up the game time, and ice cream 
was served, which put the topping on the day. The 

church that prays and plays together, stays together.  



On December 17, 1993, the first real home basketball games were played in the new activity center.                                          
School colors were orange and brown. 

The kindergarten class col-

lected pennies and took 

them to the bank to be 

counted. $62.24 was present-

ed to the building fund. They 

also made shirts—”Building 

With Jesus”. St. Peter’s held  

a spaghetti supper fund rais-

er with so many fun activities 

for young and old. Other 

fund raisers included the sale 

of St. Matthew’s apparel, a 

pizza sale, and a read-a-thon.  

Excitement of the celebration of our Savior’s 

birth filled the air. Festive music played as 

many people decorated our sanctuary. Oth-

ers caroled to our senior members before 

going out into the community to share in 

song the story of Christ’s birth. 



At left, the first 
Night at School in 
the activity center 
on May 6, 1994. 
The children put 
on the musical 
“How the West 

was Really Won”. 

Yard clean up day 

in 1994 

Sunday School 

Bible Study 

The older children sing in a service. 

First Easter breakfast in the activity center. 

Ladies’ Aid 
The Evangelism committee was 
busy at work within our church and 
throughout the community. Once 
again, they organized a roller 
skating party, and also a soup and 
sandwich supper before the even-
ing Lenten services. They also pur-
chased an outdoor sign board, and 
held “Christmas for Kids”. Parents dropped off their 
children and went Christmas shopping while the chil-
dren were entertained at church and participated in 
fun activities.  

The new hymnal, 
Christian Worship 
was introduced. 

Friends of Luther, an organization dedi-
cated to the support of Christian sec-

ondary education at Luther High 
School, began in 1994. Their goals are 

to strengthen the relationship between 
Luther and the congregations of the 

high school association.  



Dedication of the New Addition 

A dedication service for the new addition was held on September 18, 
1994 at 1:30 pm. 260 people filled the activity center and praises to 
God for this great blessing resonated throughout. A choir of both chil-
dren and adults sang “The First Song of Isaiah” and was directed by 
Terri Krueger, our first and second grade teacher. A Prayer of Dedica-
tion was sung by the adult choir, directed by Paul Schwartz of St. Pe-
ter’s.  Pastor Kloehn was the liturgist and Pastor Lyle Schalow deliv-
ered the sermon.  

Special guests in attendance were Pastor Kionka and his wife. 
Pastor Kionka served our congregation from 1950-1956. Several 
people spoke after the service. Mr. Huebner’s prophetic words 
have come true. He said in the future, some of us would be 
gathered here for some event with children that have not even 
been born yet. Indeed, we already have second generation fam-
ilies in attendance. God continues to provide Christian educa-
tion today just as he has in the past.  



Pioneers 

     At the National Camp at Whitcomb in 1994, St. Matthew’s had 
the most girls represented in the nation from one congregation! 

     At the National Convention in La Crosse in the same year, once 
again, Stoddard had the most girls there to represent their cara-
van nationally.  

     The Pioneer groups grew and were very active in the mid 
1990’s. Boy Pioneers started up once again in 1993 after a few 
years without a leader. Their meetings were held at St. Peter’s un-
der the leadership of Gary Klemstein. St. Peter’s invited our boys 
just as we invited their girls to join our Girl Pioneer group at St. 
Matthew’s.  

     The Girl Pioneers had a total of 30 girls participating in 1993. 
They were split into four groups: The Sunbeams, two groups of 
Travelers, and Trailblazers. 

Charms were earned by the 
girls for the various require-
ments that they met. 

Spring Campout at the Sparta                    
bike trail. 

Money was raised for camp and outings through their Apple 

Bake and Christmas craft sale. 

Volunteer work at church. 

Above: Pine Car Derby 



The Bart & Ruth Kannenburg Memorial Bible 

Fund was established in 1997 to gift a special 

study Bible at confirmation, and to provide addi-

tional funds for non-budgeted needs at school. 

St. Matthew’s celebrated its 125th anniversary on Sep-
tember 10, 1995. Synod president Pastor Karl Gurgel 
was the guest speaker for the morning service. 276 peo-
ple were in attendance. Dinner was served at 11 am, 
and the afternoon service began at 1:30. Guests speak-
ers were past member, Pastor Marc De Garmo, and a 
former pastor of ours, Pastor Norbert Gieschen. 226 
people were present.  

In our anniversary year, 
we had 392 baptized 
members and 301 com-
municant members.  

76 children were en-
rolled in our school. 

125th Anniversary  

The chrismons 
along with mod-
ern ornaments,  
adorned our 
Christmas tree, 
now artificial.  



Mr. Nathan Heyn was assigned as our    

new principal and upper grade teacher 

beginning with the ’98-’99 school year.  

In 1997 we had a new opportunity to share the story 
of Christ’s birth with thousands of people. Along with 
other area churches, we were a part of the live nativity 
at Riverside Park in La Crosse.  

Mr. Huebner, our principal 

accepted a call to Fort At-

kinson in late spring of 

1997. We only had oppor-

tunity to send out one call 

from the field, and it was 

declined. Pastor Kloehn  

assumed principal duties 

for the ‘97-’98 school year. 

Mrs. Deb Wittig taught 

grades 6-8. 

In 1997, we had 350 bap-

tized members  and 284 

communicant members.  

57 students were enrolled 

in our school.  

Changes were introduced in 1999. The 
Lord’s Supper was now offered twice a 
month instead of just once at the end of 
the month. Services had been held at 
9:30 am on Sundays and 7:00 pm on 
Monday evenings. The Sunday morning 
time was switched to 9:00 am to allow 
time for Bible study. The most controver-
sial change concerned the Christmas eve 
children’s program. It was a goal to have 
the children of our school united in one 
service. That meant that the very long 
tradition of having the children’s service 
in the evening on Christmas eve was bro-
ken. The children’s service in 1999 was at 
1:00 pm on the Sunday before Christmas 
at St. Matthew’s and another at 1:00 pm 
on Christmas eve at St. Peter’s. After that 
year, it returned to its traditional time on 
Christmas eve. Once held at 8 pm to al-
low farmers to finish milking their cows, 
in later years it was moved to 7 pm. Can-
dlelight services that were once held at 
11 pm, were moved up to 9 pm. 

After serving here  for 

nearly 17 years, Pastor 

Kloehn accepted a call 

and we bid him farewell 

in December of 1998. 

The Lord quickly filled 

our vacancy by sending 

us Pastor James Krueger 

in January of 1999.  

 Member Memory 
Linda Burkum and I were the first two women ush-
ers. We had some friends come to visit the Sunday I 
was ushering and they were so shocked to see a 
woman ushering in church.             - Mary Abraham 



The 2000’s 

A Child Care Committee was set up to recommend new 
playground equipment. It also saw to the needs of parents 
who needed before and after school care. St. Matthew’s 
Kids Crossing was established in 2000 and began on Au-
gust 28 of that year.  It was also a mission arm in the com-
munity for possible prospects. This surround care ran from 
6 am—6 pm and served 10 children during its only year. 
Numbers decreased because of 3 families’ job situations 
and the need was not as great. Mrs. Sill ran an after school 
surround care for a time for 5-6 children. 

The new equipment was set up in September. The drive-
way was moved to provide space for the new playground. 

The Young People’s Society was active once again. Under the leader-
ship of Joel and Rachel 
Hahm and Nathan 
Heyn, meetings were 
held at both St. 
Matthew’s and St. Pe-
ter’s. An average of 15 
people attended. When 
the Hahms moved, the 
new Chaseburg leaders 
were Chris and Denise 
Lepke. 

          Celebrating our 130th Anniversary      

A new millennium was upon us and any fears of the Y2K bug 
were squashed. People thought computers would crash at 

the stroke of midnight but it never happened.                                   
The population of Stoddard reached 815. 

January 30, 2000 

Bible study and a children’s message 

The Oscar Wehling Memorial Fund was established in 2000. 
The interest is divided among St. Matthew’s students attending 
Luther High or any college in our synod. 



April 16, 2000 

Pastor Krueger 
Christopher Krause, Miriam Leisso, Trisha 

Miller                

 

Additional lighting that matched 
our current lights was added in 
2000. They were donated from 
Holy Scripture Church in Fort 

Wayne, Indiana by Pastor Glom. 
Bill and Karen Jeffers brought 

them to our church. 

After our principal, 

Mr. Heyn accepted a 

call to Las Vegas, Ne-

vada, we welcomed 

Jon Engelbrecht in 

2001 as our principal 

and upper grade 

teacher. 

April 8, 2001 

Pastor Krueger 
Ashley Malin & Alex Green 

May 5, 2002 

Back row: Anna Zickert, Pastor Krueger 
Front row: Zachary Rach, Travis  Fischer 

In celebration of 
Stoddard’s 100th anniversary 
of being incorporated in 2003, the 
village sponsored a special parade in 
June, with many other fun activities 
throughout the weekend. 

Sunday School, 2004 



In 2004, we were blessed to have been able to pay off the 
activity center addition mortgage. 

May 4, 2003 

Back row: Zachary Kumlin, Pastor Krueger, Nicole Jambois 
Front row: Katy Helgeson, Zachary Bolon 

April 2004 

Back row: Amanda Duwe, Pastor Krueger, Hannah Wrobel 
Front row: Hannah Krueger, Danya Dravis, Gregory Jambois 

We had 38 students in grades 1-8 in our school in 2004. The num-
ber may seem small, but over 70% of the eligible children of St. 
Matthew’s attended. That was over the synod average.  

Likewise in 2005, 27 out of the possible 34 St. Matthew’s children 
were enrolled in our Day School. That means we had 79% of our 
children in our school. There was a total of 47 children enrolled that 
year, the remainder coming from St. Peter’s or non-members.  

Air conditioning was installed in the church sanctuary 
in 2002. No more would people have to fan them-
selves with their bulletins on those hot summer days. 
No more would a neighborhood cat wander in 
through an open side door during a sermon and me-
ander down the center aisle before casually walking 
back out. 

The Young People’s Society (Youth Group) was now under the lead-
ership of Perry and Lisa Kilmer. Events included a hay ride, pizza 
party & bake sale, a day on the river, bowling party, and swimming. 
On average, 15-20 youth attended each event. They also helped 
out in the first Thanksgiving Eve dinner. 

Back row: Tyler Hanson, Pastor Krueger, Kyle Pavela 
Front row: Kate Mundsack, Kali Mutschelknaus,                  

Megan Helgeson 

May 22, 2005 



We celebrated the 25th anniversary of St. Matthew’s School on 
April 10, 2005. Pastor Herb Prahl was our guest preacher. Many 
past and present students gathered for pictures. Also present 

were former principals Mr. David  Enter and Mr. Scott Huebner. 

May 18, 2008 

The Stoddard Area Community Food Pantry 
began in 2005. In that same year, we held our 
first Thanksgiving Eve Dinner. Church mem-
bers prepared and served the meal, free of 
charge. Any free will donations went to the 
food pantry. 350 dinners were served in 2006. 

Thanksgiving Eve Dinner 

Mr. Jon Beagle became 

our principal in 2006 

when Mr. Engelbrecht 

accepted a call.  

May 21, 2006 

Back row: Cody Krueger, Pastor Krueger, Anna Spears 
Megan Lepke, Shawna Boldon 

Pastor Krueger 
Ashley Malin & Alex Green 

April 22, 2007 

Pastor Krueger 
Jay Woodhouse & Darian Strasser 

Back row: Zachary Hanson. Kyle Benson, Pastor Krueger, 
Christopher Krueger, Christopher Beagle 

Front row: Kyle Chapman, Brandon Miller, Chelsie Boldon 



Torrential rain began to fall on the evening 
of August 18, 2007 and continued through-
out the night. As much as 15 inches fell, 
causing major flooding throughout the 
Stoddard & Chaseburg area. Less than 2 
miles north of Stoddard, a mudslide caused 
a house to slide onto Hwy 35. The road 
leading to La Crosse was closed for a week 
while repairs were done to the highway 
and the railroad. Pastor Krueger preached 
a special sermon from the book of Psalms 
the following Sunday. What some consid-
ered a 1000 year flood occurred again in 
June of 2008 and again in 2018 and 2019. 
Much flooding occurred, especially in the 
Chaseburg and Coon Valley area. The first 
day of school in 2018 was cancelled due to 
the flooding. A week later, more flooding 
occurred, causing two more school can-
celations in the 2018-2019 school year.  

Mr. Chris Avila 
became our princi-
pal in 2008. In that 
year, 62 children 
were enrolled at 
St. Matthew’s 
School.  

May 23, 2010 

Back row: Travis Kilmer, Pastor Arnold, Bethany Beitlich 
Front row: Miriam Beagle, Jessica Walls, Noah Boldon 

Looking for more 
ways to connect 
with the communi-
ty and to show love 
for people’s bodily 
needs as well as 
their spiritual ones, 
we began hosting 
Red Cross Blood 
Drives at our church in 2009. 

2018 

We had bid Pastor Krueger farewell 

in September of 2009 when he ac-

cepted a call to Medford, WI. Pastor 

G. Philip Arnold was ordained into 

public ministry 

and installed as 

the pastor of 

St. Matthew on 

October 18, 

2009.  

May 17 2009 

Pastor Krueger 
Kevin Walls & Zachary Kilmer 

The population of Stoddard in 2010 was 774. 



May 15, 2011 

Back row: Luke Kilmer, Pastor Arnold, RaeAnn 
Protsman     Front row: Ashley Miller     

May 6, 2012  

Nick Manske, Pastor Arnold, Alexis Uebelher, Nicole Kilmer 

May 5, 2013 

L to R: Dylan Protsman, Tanner Hanson, Pastor Arnold,                  
Samuel Krause, Chase Wedwick, Sierra Schobert, Madison Rannow 

Many technological advancements occurred during Pastor Arnold’s time with us in the 
early 2010’s. Starting in 2010, audio recordings of the services were made and put on 
CD’s for shut-in members or anyone who wanted to listen to them.  

In 2013, a Digital Outreach team was organized. This group created a website and a 
Facebook page to enable us to reach out to the world with God’s Word. Visitors could 
listen to the audio sermons on the webpage and check out information about our 
church. The Facebook page featured daily devotions, photos and information on 
church happenings, along with announcements of upcoming events.  

In 2014, we had our own YouTube channel. Videos of the services were recorded each 
week and the sermon was published for anyone wishing to watch. It was also shared 
to our Facebook page.  

By 2015, the video recordings of the services were aired on a local cable TV station.  

Some improve-

ments to our 

building that 

were made in 

2012 were resid-

ing the church 

and repainting 

the gym. Wiring 

was also done for 

a new projector. 

One may wonder how there could possibly be so many 
items donated for the rummage sale each year. God 
richly blesses people and has also blessed this fund 
raiser for the school. Originally held in the pastor’s 
garage and the storage garage, beginning in 2016, it 
has taken place in tents or in the school activity center. 
Occurring midweek before Labor Day, it was met with 
all kinds of weather—hot, cold, rainy, and in one year, 
a bad wind storm in which one of our members gra-
ciously washed many of the linens that were soaked 
from the rain.  

Rummage Sale 



Mother’s Groups 

Back row: Drew Dravis, Pastor Arnold,  
Lauren Stuebs 

Front row: Allison Beagle, Alexis Stellick,  
Leah Goralski 

May 18, 2014 

March 29, 2015 

Back row: Cynda Protsman, Pastor Arnold, Matthew Kilmer 
Front row: Faith Struemke, Berkley Harle 

There were many op-
portunities to grow in 
God’s Word. Pastor 
Arnold offered the 
regular Bible study 
after the Sunday ser-
vices, a Digging Deep-
er Bible class that met 
on Sunday evenings 
which featured an in-
depth study on select-
ed books of the Bible, an Online Bible Reading Group which participants read 
through the entire Bible in a year and were invited to ask questions online, and 
also Video Bible studies offered by the WELS  Adult Discipleship.  

The Mom’s Connection began in May of 2015. It started as a 
playgroup where moms and caretakers of young children got 
together to inspire and lift each other up in Christ. They met at 
local parks once a week and ended with a picnic lunch. Other 
activities included serving monthly for fellowship hour after 
church, monthly Mom’s Night Out, and evening book studies 
during the fall. Service projects have included redecorating the 
pre-K room in 2016, redecorating the Family Lounge in 2017, and 
renovating the Stoddard Area Food Pantry in the summer of 
2020. Mornings with Mommy began in 2019 and meet twice a 
month during the school year at the church for crafts, early 
learning, and fellowship. 

TRUNK OR TREAT 
Trunk or Treat also began in 2015 as a way to reach out to 
the community. Treats were handed out from trunks deco-
rated in a particular theme. They included Storybooks, TV 
shows, Video games, Disney movies, and Board games. 
Pumpkin bowling was played along with many other games 
with prizes. Refreshments were served to add up to a howl-
ing good time! 

In 2015,          
St. Matthew’s 
School had 34 

students. 



Pastor Schmitzer 
Elizabeth Stuebs, Ashley Manske,         

Kinley Schobert 

May 16, 2016 

April 30, 2017 

Back row: Blake Harle, Pastor Schmitzer, Sam Kilmer 
Ellie Greeno, Connor Beagle 

In the summer of 2015, Pastor Ar-
nold received two divine calls on the 
same weekend. He accepted the call 
to Bethlehem Lutheran Church of 
Menominee Falls/Germantown, WI. 
We bid him farewell on August 16. 
Pastor Silas Schmitzer accepted our 
call and was welcomed and installed 
on October 25, 2015. 

Ladies’ Aid Picnic 2015 

Mr. James Otto 
was assigned as 
our principal and 
upper grade 
teacher in 2016 
when Mr. Avila 
accepted a call. 
His wife Jackie 
became our pre-
school teacher.  

At right, a 

children’s 

message at 

Easter, 2016 

Pastor Liggett, who retired to this area, carries the St. Matthew’s banner in the 
Stoddard Memorial Day parade in 2016, along with his wife Rosie. Candy and invita-

tions to our summer events such as 
VBS and Sports Camp, are distributed 
by members. 

Sports Camp began in 2017. That first 
year, 30 children were in attendance, 17 
of whom did not attend our school.  



May 20, 2018 

Joshua Stuebs, Pastor Schmitzer, Haukin Protsman 

New playground equipment for the little 
ones was installed in the summer of 2018. 

Outdoor worship services have recently been 
held at the Stoddard Park.  St. Peter’s members 
were invited to join us for dinner and competi-
tion in a friendly game of softball. There were 
games for the kids, and even a bounce house! 

Out of thankfulness for 

their grandchildren, the 

Shepherd family have 

long provided palm 

branches on Palm Sun-

day for the altar and also 

for everyone present to 

take to their homes. 

Pastor Schmitzer wore many different hats as he dressed up for the various VBS themes throughout the past few years.                   
The VBS children sang for the outdoor service in 2016.   



May 26, 2019 

Back row: Noah Struemke, Pastor 
Schmitzer, Hailey Sill 

Front row: Josiah Uebelher, Owen 
Schobert 

The Stoddard Area Food Pantry continued to be a 
blessing to the community. When it temporarily 

closed during the pandemic and because of road con-
struction in 2020, it got a face lift and moved to an-

other room in the church basement.  

On October 13, 2019 
the first livestreamed 

church service was 
aired on our Facebook 

page and YouTube 
channel. 

The Sunday School 
with the gift bags 

they made for our 
shut-in members. 



     We began our 150th anniversary celebration on January 26, 2020. Cake 
and refreshments were served after the service. Pictures displayed through-
out the fellowship hall brought back memories and prompted interesting 
conversations.  

     Because a major road construction through Stoddard was planned for the 
spring and summer of 2020, our main celebration was planned for October 
11. What a blessing that turned out to be. In March, the corona virus, or 
COVID-19, had escalated into a pandemic. Only gatherings of less than 50 
people were permitted in early March. Soon after, on March 25,the Wiscon-
sin governor issued a “Safer at Home” order, allowing only “essential work-
ers” to go to their jobs. On March 18, schools were closed, at first for only 
two weeks, but then for the rest of the school year. Teachers and students 
switched to on-line classes. We had a blood drive scheduled and the Red 
Cross urged us not to cancel it. Forty units of blood were collected—double 
the usual amount. 

     With the blessing of our recently implemented livestreaming of our ser-
vices, we were able to continue our worship and reach out to people. No 
more than ten people were allowed in the building at one time from March 
to the end of May. Besides the pastor and organist, there were two people 
running the video, which then allowed for vocalists to lead the songs. 

     God richly blessed this ministry. Not all churches had this capability. Soon 
many other people were turning to our Facebook page and YouTube chan-
nel. We gained 82 followers for our Facebook page (for a total of 334) and 
89 subscribers to our YouTube channel (for a total of 109). From March 25 
to September we had 1, 4,571 views which translates to 1,365.5 hours of 
video watched. Our most watched was Easter Sunday with 121 live views.  

     During those two months when we could not have in-person services, 
“drive-up” communion was offered, or just a couple people at a time could 
enter the sanctuary. Members could also drive up and drop their offerings 
off after the live service ended, until noon. Any meetings that needed to be 
held, such as a call meeting for a new principal were done on “Zoom”, an 
online video conference service.  

     May 31 we were able to return to church. Things would be a little differ-
ent, however. People could only sit in every other pew, and were to “social 
distance” themselves from others not in their family. Instead of the collec-
tion plate being passed around, people placed their offerings in the plate 
which was on a stand in the fellowship hall. Instead of gathering in the fel-
lowship hall after the service, people were encouraged to take their conver-
sations outside, just as in the olden days.  

     Students returned to school for the 2020-2021 school year on August 24. 
Along with crayons, pencils, and notebooks, part of the school supply list 
included masks. Under the governor’s order, all people over 5 years of 
age were required to wear a mask. 



Confirmation Day 
was delayed be-
cause of  the re-

strictions on 
meeting in church. It 
was held on June 7. 

And just as in the 
olden days, the re-

ception line for con-
gratulating our new 

confirmands was 
held  outside.  

After sending out 
many calls for a prin-
cipal and upper grade 
teacher, our prayers 

were answered at the 
end of May when Mr. 
Joel Sonntag was as-

signed to us.  

In order to gather together in Christian fellowship, we 
offered many opportunities to meet outdoors, including 
the Otto’s farewell picnic, a few “Jamming on the 
Green” concerts, and a Cornhole tournament. 

Masks were required for everyone over age 5. 

The winners of the Cornhole tournament. 

Pastor Schmitzer 
makes the hand 
dipped corn dogs. 

As of September, 2020, St. Matthew’s had 236 communicant members 
and 292 baptized members. 39 students were enrolled in the school. 

June 7, 2020 

Back row: Jerry Weber, Pastor Schmitzer,  
Chrysta Miller 

Front row: Kately Schlicht, Juliana Di Iorio 







Nathan Heyn 
1998-2001 

Lisa Carmichael 
1999-2017 

Vicki Kunz 
1999-2004 

Jon Engelbrecht 
2001-2006 

Jon Beagle 
2006-2008 

Chris Avila 
2008-2016 

Rachel Arnold 
2014-2015 

 

Our Pastors 

Kittel 
1870 

Hass 
1870-1871 

Baartz 
1871-1874 

Kuchmann 
1874-1880 

Oerding 
1880-1891 

Palecheck 
1891-1923 

Bentrup 
1932-1940 

Engel 
1946-1950 

Brachebusch 
1923-1932 

Kionka 
1950-1956 

Schroeder 
1940-1945 

Berg 
1967-1972 

Liggett 
1972-1981 

Gieschen 
1960-1967 

Schaller 
1956-1959 

Arnold 
2009-2015 

Schmitzer 
2015-present 

Krueger 
1999-2009 

Kloehn 
1982-1998 

No 

Photo 

Our Teachers 

David Enter 
1979-1986 

Barbara Seidl 
1979-1992 

Mary (Brinkman) 
Schalow1980-1990, 

1999-2016 

Jerene Beitlich 
1981-1996 

Mary Sill 
1982-2014 

Peter Kuske 
1986-1987 

Scott Huebner 
1987-1997 

 

Lisa Carlson 
1990-1994 

Terri Krueger 
1992-1999 

 

Troy McCarger 
1994-1996 

 

Rachel 
(Biesterfeld) Hahm                     

1996-1999 

Sharlene Weibel 
1996-1999 

 

Deb Wittig 
1997-1998 

 

James Otto 
2016-2020 

 

Jaclyn Otto 
2016– 2019 

 

Sonja Oldre 
2016– present 

 

Katie Alderman 
2017-present 

 

Nicole Beckendorf 
2019-present 

Joel Sonntag 
2020-present 

Ervin Humann 
1933-1937 

 




